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IN THE UNITED STATE DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF MISSOURI 

SOUTHERN DIVISION  
 
MONICA DANIEL HUTCHISON,  ) 
      ) 
   Plaintiff,  ) 
      ) Case No.:  09-3018-CV-S-RED 
vs.      ) 
      ) Jury Trial Demanded 
TEXAS COUNTY, MISSOURI;  ) 
MICHAEL R. ANDERSON,   ) 
TEXAS COUNTY PROSECUTING  ) 
ATTORNEY; and     ) 
MICHAEL R. ANDERSON, individually ) 
      ) 
   Defendants.  ) 
 

COMPLAINT 
 

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 
 

 Plaintiff, Monica Daniel Hutchison, for her cause of action, states as follows: 
 
 1. Plaintiff Monica Daniel Hutchison is a female citizen of the United States of America 

and of Crawford County, Missouri. 

 2. Texas County, Missouri is a political subdivision of the State of Missouri existing 

under the laws of the State of Missouri, and created by 46.040 and 46.156, RSMo. 

 3. Michael Anderson is and was at all relevant times herein the Texas County, Missouri 

Prosecuting Attorney, an elected official of Texas County, Missouri, and was and is a resident of 

Texas County, Missouri. 

 4. All, or substantially all, of the acts and omissions alleged in this complaint occurred 

in Texas County, Missouri. 
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COUNT I - EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION 

 5. This action arises under the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of 

the United States, as well as other federal and state law, particularly, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000e, et 

seq. 

 6. This Court has jurisdiction of the federal claims by virtue of 28 U.S.C. Section 1343 

and 28 U.S.C. Section 1331. 

 7. This Court has jurisdiction of the state law claim pursuant to the doctrine of pendent 

jurisdiction. 

 8. Venue in this Court is proper by virtue of 28 U.S.C. Section 1391 and 28 U.S.C. 

Section 105(b)(5). 

 9. Defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. Anderson as Prosecuting 

Attorney of Texas County, Missouri are “employers” within the meaning of Section 213.010(7) 

RSMo. and 42 U.S.C. Section 2000e.   

 10. Plaintiff timely filed charges with the Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 

(“EEOC”) related to the allegations contained in this complaint and received notice of her right to 

file suit within ninety (90) days of the receipt of said letter from the U.S. Department of Justice (a 

copy of which notice is attached hereto as Plaintiff’s Exhibit A); all conditions precedent to the 

instant action have been performed by plaintiff and she has exhausted all administrative remedies 

available to her. 

 11. Plaintiff was employed by Defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson, Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri, as an administrative assistant in the 

Texas County Prosecuting Attorney’s office from January 2003 until December 23, 2005.  Texas 
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County, Missouri had delegated the power to hire and fire plaintiff and other employees of the Texas 

County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office to defendant Anderson.   

 12. During the period of time that plaintiff was employed by those defendants her 

immediate supervisor was Michael R. Anderson.  Michael R. Anderson created a sexual hostile work 

environment and discriminated against plaintiff because of her sex.  Specifically, Michael R. 

Anderson engaged in unwelcome and non-consensual physical contact of a sexual nature with 

plaintiff, used offensive and abusive language toward her, harassed her, intimidated her, made 

degrading and sexual comments in front of her, and created a hostile work environment based upon 

her sex.  Furthermore, plaintiff indicated by looks and words to Michael R. Anderson that the 

language and conduct described above was unwelcomed by her, and the conduct described above 

would be unwelcomed by a reasonable woman.  Examples of the aforementioned conduct include, 

but are not limited, to the following: 

  a) Michael R. Anderson on several different occasions, while his wife was out of 

town, asked plaintiff to come to his house and get in his hot tub with him; 

  b) On several occasions, Michael R. Anderson commented to plaintiff “how 

good [her] ass looked in [her] jeans”; 

  c) Defendant Michael R. Anderson repeatedly attempted to get plaintiff to go out 

for a drink with him after work; 

  d) When plaintiff was around defendant Anderson, he would be stare or gaze at 

plaintiff’s body in a lude way, then would smile at plaintiff and raise his eyebrows.  On numerous 

occasions when defendant Anderson did this, plaintiff told him to “stop being disgusting”. 

Defendant Anderson responded “Come on, let me flirt with you.”  Plaintiff repeated that defendant 

Anderson was creeping her out and should stop; 
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  e) Defendant Anderson on several occasions attempted to get plaintiff to go 

riding on his motorcycle with him and, on one occasion, showed up at plaintiff’s house on his 

motorcycle.  Plaintiff was home, but did not go to the door because plaintiff did not feel it was 

appropriate for Anderson to come to her home without being invited and without his wife.  

Defendant Anderson stayed in plaintiff’s driveway for a while after knocking on plaintiff’s front 

door, as if he was working on his motorcycle; 

  f) Defendant Anderson made comments about men plaintiff was dating, saying 

thing such as “What does he have that I don’t have”; 

  g) At a training meeting for the entire staff of the Texas County Prosecuting 

Attorney’s office at the Lake of the Ozarks, defendant Anderson offered his room key to plaintiff; 

  h) At another training meeting at Tan Tara Resort at the Lake of the Ozarks, on 

September 1, 2005, the staff of the Texas County Prosecuting Attorney’s office, including defendant 

Anderson and plaintiff, went to dinner together and then returned to the hotel lounge for a drink.  

Music was playing and plaintiff and two other secretaries began dancing.  A man started dancing 

with plaintiff and another of the secretaries, then came over to the table where the prosecuting 

attorney’s staff was and introduced himself to the other secretary and defendant Anderson.  When he 

tried to shake defendant Anderson’s hand, defendant Anderson stood up, glared at him, and shook 

his hand real hard.  When plaintiff told Mr. Anderson as they left the lounge that she thought he was 

rude to the man who had introduced himself, defendant Anderson got mad and said “Well how did 

he know that I wasn’t with one of you”.  Plaintiff told defendant Anderson that he was not her 

boyfriend or her father, upon which defendant Anderson threw his drink up against the building and 

walked off.; 
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  i) After the Tan Tara incident described above, plaintiff told defendant 

Anderson that he had embarrassed her and made it look like there was something going on between 

them, which there wasn’t.  Plaintiff further told him that she just wanted to do her job and be left 

alone.  However, defendant Anderson’s inappropriate conduct continued;  

  j) On November 25, 2005, a friend of plaintiff’s had a Thanksgiving dinner at 

his house, and among the guests was defendant Anderson.  Plaintiff tried to avoid defendant 

Anderson all evening.  When plaintiff got home that evening, defendant Anderson called plaintiff’s 

house and left a message asking where a file was, although plaintiff had told him where the file was 

earlier that evening; 

  k) On December 1, 2005, defendant Anderson called plaintiff into his office and 

told her that plaintiff had been “saying things about him” and that she was “putting together 

evidence together to file a sexual harassment suit against” him, and that he felt he had no choice but 

to fire her.  Defendant Anderson told plaintiff she could either resign or be fired, and to go home and 

think about it and let him know the next morning.  The next morning plaintiff told defendant 

Anderson that he would have to fire her because she had done nothing wrong, and defendant 

Anderson terminated plaintiff’s employment; 

  l) Approximately a week later, plaintiff received a telephone call from Corporal 

Jeff Kinder of the Missouri Highway Patrol who informed her that defendant Anderson had asked 

him to call plaintiff to see if plaintiff would come back to work and that defendant Anderson said he 

was sorry.  Corporal Kinder said defendant Anderson really wanted to talk to plaintiff about coming 

back.   Plaintiff did return to work on December 12, 2005 after she met with defendant Anderson and 

he apologized.  Plaintiff felt that she had no choice because she needed a job and it was close to 

Christmas; 
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  m) On December 18, 2005, a friend of plaintiff’s, Mildred Williams, who was a 

Court Clerk for Texas County Judge Bradford Elsworth, stayed overnight at plaintiff’s house.  At 

approximately 1:20 a.m. that morning, plaintiff’s home telephone rang and the answering machine 

picked up.  Defendant Anderson left a message stating that he was coming over and that he had 

something to tell her.  Plaintiff and her friend turned the lights off in the house, but defendant 

Anderson arrived at plaintiff’s home and knocked on her front door.  Plaintiff did not answer the 

door, and after a few minutes defendant Anderson returned to his vehicle.  Plaintiff’s home phone 

rang again and defendant Anderson left another message to the effect of “send the boy out, I want to 

talk to you, I have something to tell you.”  Defendant Anderson then came back to the front door and 

banged on it and went back to his vehicle and made another call, but hung up.  Plaintiff heard 

defendant Anderson get back out of his vehicle, slam his door very hard, and stomp up the stairs to 

her door.  Defendant Anderson beat on the door and even wiggled the door handles trying to open it.  

Defendant Anderson then left the front door and went to the car port door and started banging on it 

real hard.  Defendant Anderson was mad, and plaintiff heard him say “Ignore me you fucking bitch”.  

Plaintiff then called the Licking Police Department, and as soon as the officer on duty drove by, 

defendant Anderson left plaintiff’s house.  Defendant Anderson then called plaintiff’s house again 

and left a long message on plaintiff’s answering machine indicating that he had feelings for plaintiff 

and that he loved her; 

  n) After this incident, defendant Anderson left several more phone messages and 

kept pestering plaintiff and attempting to get the answering machine tape from her, and she could no 

longer tolerate the sexually harassing  and abusive work environment created by defendants; 

  o) On December 23, 2005, after unsuccessfully attempting to get plaintiff to give 

him the answering machine tape, defendant Anderson went to Judge Elsworth and obtained an order 
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for plaintiff to produce the tape to him.  Plaintiff resigned at that time as a result of her constructive 

discharge after handing a copy of the tape to the Judge. 

 13. The actions of defendant Michael R. Anderson, described in paragraph 12 of Count I 

of this complaint were done in his capacity as Texas County Prosecutor and as an agent of Texas 

County, Missouri, and were offensive, constituted sexual harassment, and created a hostile work 

environment for plaintiff based upon her sex, which harassment affected a term, condition, or 

privilege of employment.  The acts were also sufficiently pervasive to seriously affect the working 

environment of plaintiff.  Plaintiff’s eventual termination of employment was the result of a 

constructive discharge created by the conduct and environment described above. 

 14. Defendant Texas County, Missouri, by failing to prevent or take action that would 

stop the continued harassment of plaintiff, created a hostile work environment for plaintiff based 

upon her sex, which harassment affected a term, condition, or privilege of employment.  Defendant 

Texas County, Missouri’s actions or inaction in permitting the sexual hostile environment to occur 

and continue were intentional, permitting plaintiff to make a claim for punitive damages. 

 15.  Texas County Prosecuting Attorney Anderson’s actions were discriminatory towards 

plaintiff as male employees were not subjected to the same type of harassment.  

 16. As a direct and proximate result of defendants’ actions alleged herein, plaintiff has 

been damaged and continues to sustain irreparable harm in numerous respects, including, but not 

limited to, the following: 

  a) She has suffered loss of self esteem and emotional distress, and continues to 

sustain significant mental anguish; 

  b)  She sustained embarrassment and loss of prestige from her colleagues and co-

workers as a direct result of the harassment suffered while she worked for defendants; 
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  c) She was constructively discharged from her employment, causing her to lose 

wages, income and benefits; 

  d) She has incurred attorney’s fees and expenses in pursuing redress of the 

wrongs she has suffered by the hands of the defendants. 

 WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays this Court grant her the following relief: 

  a) An order requiring defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri  to take such steps as may be 

necessary to protect plaintiff from further harassment from any employee of defendants; 

  b) A judgment against defendants  Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri and in favor of plaintiff for payment 

of compensatory damages for her emotional pain and suffering, mental anguish, inconvenience, lost 

wages, employment benefits and income, and loss of enjoyment of life as a direct result of 

defendants’ intentional discrimination; 

  c) An order requiring defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri  to pay plaintiff her attorney’s fees, 

costs, and expenses of this litigation; 

  d) A judgment against defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri in favor of plaintiff for such punitive 

damages as allowed by law in order to deter defendants and other similar employers from future 

discriminatory conduct; 

  e) For such further and other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 
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COUNT II – RETALIATION 

 Plaintiff, Monica Daniel Hutchison, for Count II of her claim and cause of action against 

defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas 

County, Missouri, alleges and states as follows: 

 1. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein Paragraphs 1 through 4 

of the General Allegations and Paragraphs 5 through 16 of Count I of this petition. 

 2. Since making complaints about acts of sexual discrimination and sexual harassment 

described above, which were brought to the attention of the defendants Texas County, Missouri and 

Michael R. Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri, plaintiff has been 

subjected to numerous acts constituting retaliation in violation of Title VII and 42 U.S.C. §2000(e), 

et seq., for protected activity engaged in by plaintiff.  Such actions include, by way of example, but 

are not limited to, the following: 

  a) Defendant Michael R. Anderson, Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, 

Missouri, fired plaintiff because he understood that plaintiff was “putting together evidence to file a 

sexual harassment suit against him”; 

  b) Defendant Michael R. Anderson, Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, 

Missouri, pressured plaintiff to turn over evidence pertaining to her claim of sexual harassment, 

specifically, the answering machine tape containing messages left by defendant Michael R. 

Anderson; 

  c) Plaintiff filed her notice of charge of discrimination on or about February 15, 

2006, and perfected her charge of discrimination on May 17, 2006. 

  d) On May 31, 2006, defendant Michael R. Anderson, Prosecuting Attorney of 

Texas County, Missouri, filed a damage complaint against plaintiff Monica Daniel (Hutchison), 
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claiming that he had been libeled and slandered by plaintiff Monica Daniel (Hutchison).  A copy of 

said damage complaint is attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated by reference as in fully set 

forth herein. 

 3. As a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid actions of defendant Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri, plaintiff has suffered damages and 

continues to sustain irreparable harm in numerous respects, including, but not limited to, the 

following: 

  a) She has suffered loss of self esteem and emotional distress, and continues to 

sustain significant mental anguish; 

  b) She sustained embarrassment and loss of prestige among her colleagues and 

co-workers, and among the general public; 

  c) She has incurred attorney’s fees and expenses in pursuing redress of the 

wrong she has suffered by the hands of defendants. 

 4. Defendant Texas County, Missouri knew or should have known of the above 

described retaliation, which was taken by its agent, Michael R. Anderson, as Prosecuting Attorney of 

Texas County, Missouri. 

 5. The actions of defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. Anderson as 

Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri in retaliating and permitting the retaliation to occur 

is intentional, permitting plaintiff to make a claim for punitive damages. 

 WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays this Court grant her the following relief: 

  a) An order requiring defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri to take such steps as may be necessary 

to protect plaintiff from further harassment from any employee of defendants; 
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  b) A judgment against defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri and in favor of plaintiff for payment 

of compensatory damages for her emotional pain and suffering, mental anguish, inconvenience, and 

loss of enjoyment of life as a direct result of defendants’ intentional discrimination; 

  c) An order requiring defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri to pay plaintiff her attorney’s fees, 

costs and expenses of this litigation; 

  d) A judgment against defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri and in favor of plaintiff for punitive 

damages as allowed by law in order to deter defendants and other similar employers from future 

discriminatory conduct; 

  e) For such further and other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

 

COUNT III – EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION – STATE LAW CLAIMS 

 Plaintiff, Monica Daniel Hutchison, pursuant to Chapter 213 of the Revised Statutes of 

Missouri, for her claims and causes of actions against defendants Texas County, Missouri and 

Michael R. Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri  states to the Court as 

follows: 

 1. Plaintiff hereby realleges and incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein in 

Paragraphs 1 through 4 of the General Allegations and Paragraphs 5 through 16 of Count I and 

Paragraphs 1 through 5 of Count II of this Complaint. 

 2. Defendants Texas County, Missouri, and Michael R. Anderson, Texas County 

Prosecuting Attorney, are employers within the meaning of Section 213.010(7), RSMo. 
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 3. Plaintiff has complied with all requirements of Section 213.111, RSMo. 

 4. By means of the practices alleged more specifically in Count I and Count II of this 

Complaint, defendants intentionally and maliciously discriminated against plaintiff on account of her 

sex with respect to the terms, conditions, or privileges of her employment, in violation of Section 

213.055, RSMo. 

 5. In violation of Section 213.070, RSMo., defendants Texas County, Missouri and 

Michael R. Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri  have willfully and 

maliciously perpetrated a pattern of intentional discrimination against plaintiff and willfully and 

maliciously retaliated and discriminated against her on account of her complaining of the harassment 

she suffered and the hostile work environment created by defendants Texas County, Missouri and 

Michael R. Anderson as Prosecuting Attorney of Texas County, Missouri. 

 6. As a result of those defendants’ actions, plaintiff has sustained damages, as more 

specifically alleged in Paragraph 16 of Count I and Paragraph 3 of Count II of this Complaint. 

 WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays that, pursuant to Section 213.111, RSMo., the Court grant her 

the following relief: 

  a) An order requiring defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson, Prosecuting Attorney for Texas County, Missouri to take such steps as may be necessary 

to protect plaintiff from further harassment from any employee of those defendants; 

  b) A judgment against defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson, Texas County Prosecuting Attorney, and in favor of plaintiff for payment of 

compensatory damages for her emotional pain and suffering, mental anguish, inconvenience, and 

loss of enjoyment of life as a direct result of those defendants’ intentional discrimination; 



13 

 

  c) An order requiring defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson, Prosecuting Attorney for Texas County, Missouri to pay plaintiff her attorney’s fees, 

costs and expenses of this litigation; 

  d) A judgment against defendants Texas County, Missouri and Michael R. 

Anderson, Texas County Prosecuting Attorney, and in favor of plaintiff for punitive damages as 

allowed by law in order to deter defendants and other similar employers from future discriminatory 

conduct; 

  e) For such further and other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

 

COUNT IV – MALICIOUS PROSECUTION 

 Plaintiff, Monica Daniel Hutchison, for Count IV of her claim and cause of action against 

defendant Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas County Prosecuting Attorney, alleges and 

states as follows: 

 1. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein Paragraphs 1 through 4 

of the General Allegations and Paragraphs 5 through 16 of Count I of this Complaint, Paragraphs 1 

through 5 of Count II of this Complaint, and Paragraphs 1 through 6 of Count III of this Complaint. 

 2. Defendant Michael R. Anderson commenced and instigated a civil lawsuit against 

plaintiff on May 31, 2006, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated by 

reference as if fully set forth herein. 

 3. Said lawsuit was dismissed without prejudice on July 10, 2006 by defendant Michael 

R. Anderson.   

 4. Defendant Michael R. Anderson has subsequently abandoned that lawsuit, and that 

litigation has therefore terminated in favor of plaintiff. 
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 5. Defendant Michael R. Anderson lacked probable cause for filing the lawsuit against 

plaintiff and did not have a belief in the facts that he alleged in that lawsuit, based on sufficient 

circumstances to reasonably induce such belief by a person of reasonable prudence in the same or 

similar situation, and did not have a reasonable belief that under such facts his claim was valid under 

the applicable law. 

 6. Defendant Michael R. Anderson instituted and commenced the lawsuit against 

plaintiff maliciously and without reasonable grounds. 

 7. In instigating and prosecuting the above referenced civil lawsuit against plaintiff, 

defendant Michael R. Anderson acted with an improper or wrongful motive constituting legal malice 

and entitling plaintiff to punitive damages herein.  Defendant Michael R. Anderson’s improper or 

wrongful motive including illegally retaliating against plaintiff for filing a charge of sexual 

harassment and attempting to intimidate or coerce her into not exercising her legal rights to seek 

redress for defendants’ sexual harassment as alleged herein. 

 8. As a direct and proximate result of the aforesaid actions of defendant Michael R. 

Anderson, plaintiff has suffered damages and continues to sustain irreparable harm in numerous 

respects, including, but not limited to, the following: 

  a) She has suffered loss of self esteem, emotional distress and significant mental 

anguish; 

  b) She sustained embarrassment, loss of prestige and public humiliation; 

  c) She has incurred attorney’s fees and expenses in defending herself against the 

civil lawsuit filed against her by defendant Michael R. Anderson. 
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 9. Defendant Michael R. Anderson’s actions alleged herein with respect to his malicious 

prosecution of a lawsuit against plaintiff was outrageous because of his evil motive or reckless 

indifference to the rights of others, entitling plaintiff to compensation for punitive damages. 

 WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays this Court grant her the following relief: 

 a) A judgment against defendant Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas 

County Prosecuting Attorney, and in favor of plaintiff for payment of compensatory damages for her 

emotional pain and suffering, embarrassment and humiliation, mental anguish, costs and expenses in 

defending herself against defendant Michael R. Anderson’s civil lawsuit against her, and her loss of 

enjoyment of life as a direct result of defendant Michael R. Anderson’s malicious prosecution of the 

lawsuit against plaintiff; 

 b) A judgment against defendant Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas 

County Prosecuting Attorney, and in favor of plaintiff for punitive damages as allowed by law in 

order to deter defendant and others from like conduct; 

 c) For such further and other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 

 

COUNT V – ABUSE OF PROCESS 

 Plaintiff, Monica Daniel Hutchison, for Count V of her claim and cause of action against 

defendant Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas County Prosecuting Attorney, alleges and 

states as follows: 

 1. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein Paragraphs 1 through 4 

of the General Allegations and Paragraphs 5 through 16 of Count I of this complaint, Paragraphs 1 

through 5 of Count II of this Complaint, Paragraphs 1 through 6 of Count III of this Complaint, and 

Paragraphs 1 through 9 of Count IV of this Complaint. 
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 2. Defendant Michael R. Anderson commenced and instigated a civil lawsuit against 

plaintiff on May 31, 2006, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated by 

reference as is fully set forth herein. 

 3. Said lawsuit was instituted for the unlawful and collateral purpose of quieting 

plaintiff from making any statements regarding defendant Michael R. Anderson, intimidating 

plaintiff, and retaliating for plaintiff’s exercise of her rights to seek redress for unlawful employment 

discrimination on the basis of sex, and to coerce plaintiff into ceasing any efforts to seek redress for 

unlawful employment discrimination on the basis of sex. 

 4. In filing his lawsuit against plaintiff, defendant Michael R. Anderson made an illegal, 

improper, and perverted use of process neither warranted or authorized at law. 

 5. Defendant Michael R. Anderson had no legal purpose in exercising such illegal, 

improper, and perverted use of process as set forth above. 

 6. On December 23, 2005, defendant Michael R. Anderson obtained, ex parte, a 

subpoena for investigation and order to produce documents, a copy of which is attached hereto as 

Exhibit C and incorporated herein as fully set forth. 

 7. Said subpoena, obtained by defendant Michael R. Anderson utilizing his position as 

prosecuting attorney, was illegal and unlawful, and constituted an improper and perverted use of 

process which was not warranted or authorized. 

 8. Defendant Michael R. Anderson obtained said subpoena through false pretenses and 

deceit. 

 9. Defendant Michael R. Anderson had no legal purpose in obtaining the issuance of 

said subpoena in that it was obtained to retaliate against plaintiff for exercising her right to seek 

redress against defendants for illegal employment discrimination on the basis of sex, and to coerce 
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plaintiff into ceasing any efforts to seek redress for unlawful employment discrimination on the basis 

of sex.  

 10. As a direct and proximate result of defendant Michael R. Anderson’s abuse of process 

as set forth above, plaintiff was damaged and continues to sustain irreparable harm in numerous 

respects, including, but not limited to, the following: 

  a) She has suffered loss of self esteem, emotional distress and significant mental 

anguish; 

  b) She sustained embarrassment, loss of prestige and public humiliation; 

  c) Defendant Michael R. Anderson’s actions alleged herein with respect to his 

abuse of process against plaintiff was outrageous because of his evil motive or reckless indifference 

to the rights of others, entitling plaintiff to compensation for punitive damages. 

 WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays this Court grant her the following relief: 

 a) A judgment against Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas County 

Prosecuting Attorney, and in favor of plaintiff for payment of compensatory damages for her 

emotional pain and suffering, embarrassment and humiliation, mental anguish, and her loss of 

enjoyment of life as a direct result of defendant Michael R. Anderson’s abuse of process against 

plaintiff; 

 b) A judgment against defendant Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas 

County Prosecuting Attorney, and in favor of plaintiff for punitive damages as allowed by law in 

order to deter defendant and others from like conduct; 

 c) For such further and other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 
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COUNT VI – DEFAMATION  

 Plaintiff, Monica Daniel Hutchison, for Count V of her claim and cause of action against 

defendant Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas County Prosecuting Attorney, alleges and 

states as follows: 

 1. Plaintiff incorporates by reference as if fully set forth herein Paragraphs 1 through 4 

of the General Allegations and Paragraphs 5 through 16 of Count I of this complaint, Paragraphs 1 

through 5 of Count II of this Complaint, Paragraphs 1 through 6 of Count III of this Complaint, 

Paragraphs 1 through 9 of Count IV of this Complaint, and Paragraphs 1 through 10 of Count V of 

this Complaint. 

 2. Defendant Michael R. Anderson made false and defamatory statements regarding 

plaintiff Monica Daniel Hutchison, including that plaintiff used her position in the Texas County 

Prosecutor’s Office to “do favors” for friends, and “to coordinate and orchestrate a “swinger” style 

sex ring out of the Texas County Prosecuting Attorney’s Office”. 

 3. Said false and defamatory statements were published in writing in the damage 

complaint filed against plaintiff by defendant Michael R. Anderson and in press releases defendant 

Michael R. Anderson issued in connection with that lawsuit and were published verbally to 

reporters, Court personnel, and the public at large. 

 4. Said communications and conduct by defendant Michael R. Anderson have been read 

and heard by the public. 

 5. Defendant Michael R. Anderson acted with reckless disregard for whether or not the 

information he was disseminating in a malicious, libelous and slanderous fashion as set forth above 

was true or false at a time when defendant Michael R. Anderson had serious doubts as to whether 

said information was true and/or knew that said information was false. 
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 6. Plaintiff Monica Daniel Hutchison was not and is not a public official or public figure 

within the meaning of those terms as used in connection with defamation. 

 7. The false and defamatory statements set forth above tended to expose plaintiff to 

hatred, contempt, ridicule, and embarrassment, and deprived the plaintiff of the benefit of public 

confidence and social associations. 

 8. As a direct and proximate result of the defamatory and false statements of defendant 

Michael R. Anderson, plaintiff’s reputation was damaged. 

 9. Defendant Michael R. Anderson’s actions alleged herein with respect to his 

defamatory, libelous, and slanderous statements against plaintiff were outrageous because of his evil 

motive or reckless indifference to the rights of others, entitling plaintiff to compensation for punitive 

damages. 

 WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays this Court grant her the following relief: 

 a) A judgment against Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas County 

Prosecuting Attorney, and in favor of plaintiff for payment of compensatory damages for her 

emotional pain and suffering, embarrassment and humiliation, mental anguish, and her loss of 

enjoyment of life as a direct result of defendant Michael R. Anderson’s abuse of process against 

plaintiff; 

 b) A judgment against defendant Michael R. Anderson, individually and as Texas 

County Prosecuting Attorney, and in favor of plaintiff for punitive damages as allowed by law in 

order to deter defendant and others from like conduct; 

 c) For such further and other relief as the Court deems just and proper. 
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DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY 

 Plaintiff hereby makes demand for trial by jury on all counts herein. 

 

 

       Respectfully Submitted, 

       STEELMAN, GAUNT & HORSEFIELD 

 

      By: /s/    David L. Steelman 
       MO Bar #27334 
       Stephen F. Gaunt   MO Bar #33183 
       901 Pine Street, Ste. 110 
       P.O. Box 1257 
       Rolla, MO  65402 
       Telephone:  573-341-8336 
       Fax:  573-341-8548 
       dsteelman@steelmanandgaunt.com  
       sgaunt@steelmanandgaunt.com  
 
       ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF 
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